In Council. AWNAPOLIS, MAY 16, 1805.

ORDERED; That the act to provide for the trial of facts in the several counties of this state, and to alter, change and abolish, all such parts of the constitution and form of government as relate to the general court and court of appeals, be published twice in each week, for the space of three months, in the Maryland Gazette, at Annapolis; the American, Telegraphe, and the Federal Guzette, at Baltimore; the National Intelligencer; the Republican Advocate and Bartgis's paper, at Frederick-town; Grieves's paper, at Hagar's-town; and in Smith's and Cowan's papers, at Ealton.

By order, NINIAN PINKNEY, Clerk.

An ACT to provide for the trial of facts in the several counties of this state, and to alter, change and abolish, all such parts of the constitution and form of government as relate to the general court and court of appeals.

B E it enacted, by the General Assembly of Mary-land, That this state shall be divided into six judicial diffricts, in manner and form following, to wit: Saint-Mary's, Charles and Prince-George's counties, shall be the fiell district; Cacil, Kent, Queen-Anne's and Talbot counties, shall be the second district; Calvert, Anne-Arundel and Montgomery counties, shall be the third district; Caroline, Dorchester, Somerset and Worcester counties, shall be the fourth district; Frederick, Washington and Allegany counties, shall be the fifth district; Baltimore and Harford counties, shall be fixth district; and there shall be appointed, for each of the faid judicial districts, three persons of integrity and found legal knowledge, relidents of the flate of Maryland, who shall, previous so and during their acting as judges, relide in the district for which they shall respectively be appointed, one of whom shall be Ityled in the commission Chief Judge, and the other two Affociate Judges, of the diffrict for which they shall be appointed; and the chief judge, together with the two affociate judges, shall compute the county courts in each respective district; and each judge shall hold his commillion during good behaviour, removable for misbehaviour on conviction in a court of law, or shall be removed by the governor, upon the address of the general affembly, provided that two thirds of all the members of each house concur in such address; and the county courts, fo as aforefaid established, shall have, hold and exercise, in the several counties of this state, all and every the powers, authorities and jurisdictions, which the county courts of this state now have, use and exercise, and which shall be hereafter p elcribed by law; and the faid county courts established by this act shall respectively hold their sesfions in the feveral counties at fuch times and places as the legislature shall direct and appoint, and the falaries of the faid judges shall not be diminished during the period of their continuance in office.

II. And be it enacted, That in any fuit or action at law hereafter to be commenced or instituted in any county court of this state, the judges thereof, upon fuggestion, in writing, by either of the parties thereto, supported by affidavit, or other proper evidence, that a fair and impartial trial cannot be had in the county court of the county where fuch fuit or action is depending, shall and may order and direct the re-cord of their proceedings in such suit or action to be transmitted to the judges of any county court within the diffrict for trial, and the judges of fuch county court, to whom the faid record shall be transmitted, shall hear and determine the same in like manner as if fuch fuit or action had been originally inflituted therein; provided nevertheless, that such suggestion shall be made as aforesaid before or during the term in which the issue or issues may be joined in faid suit or action; and provided also, that such turther remedy may provided by law in the premiles as the legislature shall from time to time direct and enact.

III. And be it enacted, That if any party presented or indicted in any of the county courts of this late, shall fuggest, in writing, to the court in which such profecution is depending, that a fair and impartial trial cannot be had in such court, it shall and may be lawful for the faid court to order and direct the record of their proceedings in the faid profecution to be transmitted to the judges of any adjoining county court for trial, and the judges of such adjoining county court shall hear and determine the same in the fame manner as if fuch profecution had been originally instituted therein; provided, that such further and other remedy may be provided by law in the premises as the legislature may direct and enact.

IV. And be it enacted, That if the attorney-general, or the profecutor for the state, shall suggest, in writing, to any county court before whom an indictment is or may be depending, that the state cannot have a fair and impartial trial in such court, it shall and may be lawful for the faid court, in their difcretion, to order and direct the record of their proceedings in the faid profecution to be transmitted to the judges of any adjoining county court for trial, and the judges of fuch county court shall hear and determine the same as if such profecution had been originally instituted therein.

V. And be it enacted, That there shall be a court of appeals, and the same shall be composed of the chief judges of the feveral judicial districts of the state, which said court of appeals shall hold, use and exercise, all and singular the powers, authorities and jurisdictions, heretofore held, used and exercised, by the court of appeals of this state, and also the appellate jurisdiction heretofore used and exercised by the general court; and the faid court of appeals heres

by established shall sit on the western and eastern shores for transacting and determining the business of the respective shores, at such times and places as the future legislature of this state shall direct and appoint, and any three of the faid judges of the court of appeals shall form a quorum to hear and decide in all cases pending in said court; and the judge who has given a decision in any case in the county court, shall withdraw from the bench upon the deciding of the same case before the court of appeals; and the judges of the court of appeals may appoint the clerks of faid court for the western and eastern shores respectively, who shall hold their appointments during good behaviour, removable only for misbehaviour on conviction in a court of law; and in case of death, refignation, disqualification, or removal out of the state, or from their respective shores, of either of the laid clerks in the vacation of the faid court, the governor, with the advice of the council, may appoint and commission a fit and proper person to such vacant office, to hold the same until the next meeting of the said court; and all laws passed after this act shall take effect, shall be recorded in the office of the court of appeals of the western shore.

VI. And be it enacted, That all and every part of the constitution and form of government which relates to the court of appeals and the general court, or the judges thereof, or that is in any manner repugnant to, or inconsistent with, the provisions of this act, be and the same is hereby repealed, abrogated and annulled, upon the confirmation hereof; provided, that nothing herein contained shall be constitued so as to authorise the removal of the clerks of the respective county courts, being in commission at the time of the paffing of this act, in any other mode or manner than that prescribed by the constitution and form of go-

VII. And be it enacted, That if this act shall be confirmed by the general affembly, after the next election of delegates, in the first session after such new election, as the constitution and form of government diretis, that in such case this act, and the alterations and amendifients of the conflitution and form of government therein contained, shall be taken and con-fidelity. I am. Gentlemen. lidered, and thall conflictute and he valid, as a part of the faid conflitution and form of government, to all intents and purpoles, any thing in the faid conflitution and form of government to the contrary notwithstanding.

Anne-Arundel County Court,

APRIL TERM, 1805. INGLETON WARFIELD, an infolvent debtor of Anne-Arundel county, having applied, by petition, in writing, to Anne-Arundel county court, praying the benefit of an act for the benefit of infolvent debtors, passed at November session, eighteen hundred and four, and a schedule of his property, and a list of creditors, on oath, as by the faid act is required, being aquexed to his faid petition; and the faid Singleton Warfield being under an arrest upon mesne proceis for debis due before the passage of the said act, and having proved to the fatisfaction of the faid court that he had refided in the state of Maryland the two last years preceding the passage of thesaid act-It is thereupon adjudged and ordered, that the faid Singleton Warfield appear before the faid court, at the court-house, in the city of Annapolis, on the twentyfourth day of September next, then and there to produce to faid court, the affent, in writing, of creditors holding two thirds of the amount of his debts, and to answer such interrogatories as may be proposed to him by his creditors, and that the faid day be and it is hereby appointed the time for faid creditors to appear and recommend a truftee for their benefit, and that the faid Singleton Warfield give them notice of the passage of this order, by causing a copy of it to be inferted in the Maryland Gazette once in each of the next twelve successive weeks.

Signed by order, NICH: HARWOOD, Cik. A. A. County Court. May 31, 1805.

This is to give notice,

THAT the subscriber, of Anne-Arundel county, hath obtained from the orphans court of Anne-Arundel county, in Maryland, letters testamentary on the personal estate of FRANCIS SIMPSON, late of Anne-Arundel county, deceased. All persons having claims against the deceased are hereby warned to exhibit the fame, with the vouchers thereof, to the subscriber, at or before the seventh day of November next, they may otherwise by law be excluded from all benefit of said estate. Given under my hand, this 7th day of May, 1805. THOMASON SIMPSON, Executrix.

STRAY.

AKEN up by the subscriber, living near Alexandria ferry, in Prince-George's county, an iron gray HORSE, supposed to be fix or seven years old, thirteen and an half hands high, with a bobbed tail and ridged mane, having no other perceivable mark or brand. The owner is requested to prove property, pay charges, and take him away.

WILLIAM TUCKER. June 11, 1805.

Furniture for Sale.

WILL dispose of a variety of very valuable HOUSEHOLD & KITCHEN FURNITURE, and will hire or fell feveral good house fervants

R. B. LATIMER. Annapolis, April 24, 1805.

NOTICE.

TOTICE is hereby given to all persons indebted for officers fees for the two last years, that unlefs they make payment by the 10th of August they will be executed for the same, without respect to persons. JASPER E. TILLY, Sheriff of Anne-Arundel county.

June 3, 1805.

To the VOTERS of Anne-Arundel county and the City of Annapolis.

OR the honour you once conferred on me, in making me your choice as sheriff of Anne-Arundel county, and particularly for the zeal you manifested on that occasion, I offer you my warm and sincere thanks; having reason to hope that my official conduct, during three years, met your approbation, and that you have had no cause to regret your choice, I flatter myself that your confidence in me has not diminished. Presuming therefore on your suture sepport, and being folicited by numerous friends, I take the liberty of declaring my intention to offer as a candidate at the next election for sheriff; should I be so happy as to obtain your suffrages, every effort of mine shall be used to discharge, with propriety, the various and important duties of that of. fice. I remain, gentlemen, with every fentiment of respect, your humble servant,

JOHN WELCH. Annapolis, September 18, 1804.

To the Voters of Anne-Arundel county and City of Annapolis.

GENTLEMEN, ROM the promised support of many of my fellow-citizens, I am encouraged to offer myfelf a candidate for the next SHERIFFALTY of this county. Should be honored with your support on that occasion, you may rest assured, that every exertion on my part will be used to discharge the duties that will necessarily devolve on me with industry and

April, 1805. \

JOSEPH M'CENEY.

By virtue of a decree from the court of chancery the Subscriber will SELL, at PUBLIC AUCTION.

on the tenth day of July next, CEVERAL lots of GROUND, late the property of Benjamin Brookes, decease, in the town of Upper-Marlhorough, in Prince-George's county; two of these lots are improved, on the one stands the well known tavern, lately occupied by Samuel Coolidge, with the improvements thereto attached and on the other the house which Samuel Hepburn, Elq; has occupied for sometime past, and has just moved from. On the day of fale the unimproved lots will be particularly described, and all the improvements shewn. The terms are, bond, with security, given for the purchase money, payable in two and three years. Possession will be immediately given.

This property is fold for the payment of the debts of the deceased; all persons who have claims and have not yet exhibited them, are requested to file the same with the register of the court of chancery, with the respective vouchers, on or before the 25th day of November next.

ROBERT BOWIE, Trustee.

NOTICE.

HE subscriber being seized of the following tracts of land, lying in Prince-George's county; to wit: PART OF MOUNT CALVERT, MANOR, CRAYCROFT'S RIGHT, BROOKE RIDGE, and the Fa-VOUR, some of the lines whereof are held under course and distance only, hereby gives notice, that he intends to petition Prince-George's county court, at September term next, for a commission to mark and bound the said lands, agreeably to the directions of the act of affembly for marking

WILLIAM N. DORSETT. June 5, 1805.

This is to give notice, HAT the fubscriber, of Anne-Arundel county, in the state of Maryland, hath obtained from the orphans court of Anne-Arundel county, in Maryland, letters of administration on the personal estate of LEWIS JONES, late of Anne-Arundel county, deceased. All persons having claims against the deceased are hereby warned to exhibit the same, with the vouchers thereof, to the subscriber, at or before the 28th day of November next, they may otherwise by law be excluded from all benefit of the faid estate. Given under my hand, this 28th of May, 1805. ELIZABETH JONES, Administratrix.

Pursuant to an order of the orphans court of Anne-Arundel county, will be SOLD, for ready money, at the late dwelling of Samuel Ward, of Benjamin, of faid county, deceafed, on Saturday the

PART of the personal property of the said SA-MUEL WARD, confifting of one negro woman and children. The fale to commence at 11 o'clock, A. M.

NATHAN WARD, Administrator. June 13, 1805.

ANNAPOLIS: Printed by FREDERICK and SAMUEL GREEN.